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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of 81] Toll Raad Private Limited

Report on the Audit of Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of SU Toll Road Private Limited (“the
Company”}, which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, the Statement of Profit and
Loss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Cash Flows and
the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of material
accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter veferred to as “Financial
Statements”),

{n our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies {Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, {"ind AS") and other accounting principles generally accepted
in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024, its Josses including Other
Comprehensive income, its Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes in Equity {or the year ended on
that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing ("SA”) specified under Section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described i the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India {1CAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibitities in accordance with these requirements and the 1CAl's
Code of Ethics. We helieve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion on the (inancial statements,

Uncertainty Related to Related to Going Concern

We draw attention to Note No. 39 of the Financial Statements which indicates that the Company
has incurred a net loss 140.67 Million during the year ended March 31, 2024 and as of date the
net-worth is negative Rs. 48.36 Million and the current liahilities {excluding current maturities)
exceed the current Assets by Rs. 3,762 Million. Further, the borrowings have been classified as
NPA bu h This indicate that uncerlainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as going concern. However, the Statement of the Company has been prepared
on goeing concern basis for the reasons stated in the said Note.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’'s Report Thereon
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information

comprises the information included in the Board's report and shareholder’s Information, but does
ntot include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.
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Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information ts materially inconsistent with
the standalene (inancial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of cur audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated, If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information: we required te report that fact. The
other information is likely to be provided to us after the date of our report. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

Management Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act,
with respect to the preparation of these Financial Statements that give a true and (air view of the
Financial Position, Financial Performance including Other Comprehensive Income, Cash Flows and
the Statement of Changes in Equity of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other
accounting principles generally accepted in india.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provision of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of the appropriate accounting policies;
making judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial contrels, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, mattéers related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Qur objectives are Lo obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high levet of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticisin throughout the audit, We also:

+  ldentily and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.




& ASSOCIATES
ARTERERACGAUNTANTS

+  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the augiﬁin order o
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143{3)(i) of the Act, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinien on whether the Company has adequate internal
financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls,

«  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

«  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability te continue as a
going concern. if we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in cur auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modily our opinion. Qur conclusiens are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

s Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
ind AS Financial Statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative
factors in:

i. planning the scope of sur audit work and in evaluating the resuits of our work; and
ii. to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the Ind AS Financial Statements,

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on cur independence, and
where appiicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies [Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the
“Annexure A" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the
extent applicable.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a} We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

b} In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as appears from our examination of those books;
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Statement of Cash Flows and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this report are in
agreement with the books of account;

In our opinien, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the accounting standards
specified under section 133 of the Act;

On the basis of written representations received from the directors as en March 31, 2024
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March
31, 2024, from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164(2} of the Act;

With respect Lo the adeguacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company with reference to these financial statements and the eperating effectiveness of
such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”,

Wwith respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditer’s Repost in accordanee with
the reguirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, we report that no
remuneration has been paid by the company to its directors during the year, Hence the
requirement of the company for compliance under this section is not applicable.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rules 11 of the Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and as
represented by the management:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigation as at March 31, 2024
on its financial position in its Financial Statement, - Refer Note No. 30 & 32 of the
accompanying financial statements;

ii. The Company did vot have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foresecable losses.

fii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. (a} Management has represented to us that, to the best of its knowledge and
helief, as disclosed in Note No. 40 to the financial statement neo funds have been
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium
or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other persons
or entities, including foreign entities {“Intermediaries”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether,
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company {“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on hehalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

(b} Management has represented to us that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
as disclosed in Note No. 40 to the financial statcment no funds have been received
by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
("Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Company shall, whather, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Funding Party {“Ultimate Beneficiaries”} or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries
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(¢} Based on cur audit procedure conducted that are cunmdere% ﬁgelgs[gnﬁ)?e and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our attention that cause us
to believe that the representation given by the management under paragraph (2)
(i) (iv] (a) & (b) contain any material misstatement.

V. The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year.

vi, Based on our examination which included test check, the company has used
an accounting software for maintaining its hooks of accounts which has a
feature of maintaining audit trait facility, which has been operating thereafter.
Further, during the course of our audit, we did not come across any cases
where the audit trail maintained has heen tampered with.

As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014 is applicable
from April 1, 2023, reporting under Rule 11 {g} of the said Rule on
preservation of audit trail as per the statutory requirements for record
retention is not applicable for the financial year 2023-24.

For MKPS & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration no. 302014E

Marendra Khandal

Partner

Membership No.: 065025
UDIN : 24065025BKA0QFU5971

Place :Mumbai
Date :May10,2024
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“ANNEXURE A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF SU
TOLL ROAD PRIVATE LIMITED.

(Referred te in Paragraph 2 under the heading of “Report on other legal and regulatory
requirements” of our report of even date)

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company
and the books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state that:

i) (a} {A) The company does not carry an property, plant and equipment in its financial
statements and hence the reporting requirements under this sub-clause is not applicable.
{B) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of its intangible
assets.

(1) Inview of there being no property, plant and equipment, the reporting requirements under
this sub-clause is not applicable.

(¢ There are no immovable properties disclosed in the accompanying financial statements
and hence the reporting requirements under sub-clause (c) of clause (i) of paragraph 3 of
the order are not applicabile.

(d)  As explained to us, the company has not revalued any of its [ntangible assets during the
year.,

{e)  According to the information and explanations provided to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the company, we report that no proceedings have been
initiated during the year or are pending against the company as at March 31, 2024 for
holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of
1988) and rules made thereunder.

ii) {a)  In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company
does not carry any inventories. Hence, the reporting reguirements under sub-clause {a} of
clause (ii) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable.

{b)  The company has not been sanctioned any working capital limits from banks or financial
institutions and hence the reporting reguirements under sub-clause {b} of clause (ii) of
paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable.

iti)  The company has not made investments in, provided any guarantee or security or granted any
loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the reporting requirement of clause
30N, (b).(c),(d),{e) & {f) of the Order are not applicable.

iv)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has
not advanced any loans to directors / to a company in which the Director is interested to which
the provisions of section 185 of the Act apply. Further, based on the information and explanations
given to us, being an infrastructure company, the provisions of section 186 of the Act to the extent
of loans, guarantees and securities granted are not applicabie to the company. Hence, the
reporting requirements under clause {iv} of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicabie,

v) in our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has
not accepted any deposits during the period under audit. Censequently, the directives issued by
Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the rules framed
thereunder are not applicable.




vi)
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‘The maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government under sub-section
{1) of section 148 of the Act for the company. We have broadly reviewed such records and are of
the opinion that prima-facie, the prescribed records have been made and maintained. We have
not, however, made a detailed examination of the records with a view to determine whether they
are accurate or complete.

(a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based

on our examination of the books of the company, the company is generally regular in
depositing undisputed applicable statutory dues including Goods and Services Tax,
provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, and any other material statutory
dues to the appropriate authorities.
There are no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Services Tax,
provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, and any other material statutory
dues in arrears as at March 31, 2024 for a period of more than six months from the date
they became payabie.

(b)  According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no statutory dues
referred to in clause {a) above which have not been deposited on account of any dispute
except the following:

Name of the | Nature of Dues | Period  for | Forum where dispute | Amount
statute which  the | is pending involved
amount (in Rs.)
related
income Tax | Income Tax FY 2017-18 | CIT (Appeal} 1,79,890
Act, 1961
Finance Act, | Service Tax October Bombay High Court 3,84,30,863
1994 2010 to
September
2015

According to the information and explanations and representation given to us, there are no
transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that has been surrendered or
disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the income Tax Act, 1961.

{a) In our opinionand according to the information and explanations given and books of
accounts and records examined by us, the Company has defaulted in repayment of
debentures, loans or other borrowings and in the payment of interest thereon to any
tender. The details in respect of the same are as under:

Lenders Name Principal Days Interest Days of defaunit
Default (Rs. | of Default
in Million) defauit | (Rs. in
Million)
Dena Bank (BOB) 70.50 275 78.20 305
SBI - (SBM, SBB} merged) 211.76 275 363.49 305
OBC/PNB 83.50 275 111.85 305
Phoenix ARC (Trust) 125.54 275 186.02 305

The same are aiso disclosed at Note No. 9 of the accompanying financial statements, The
harrowings have Ieen classified us NPA hy the lenders.

(b) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not been declared wilful defaulter hy any bank or financial institution or
government or any government authority. (refer Note no. 9(1)(viii) to the financial
statement)

{c) Inour opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, no fresh
term loans have been taken during the year.
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(d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the company, in our opinion
funds raised on short term basis aggregating to Rs. 1542 Million have been prima-facie
being used for long term purposes as at the end of the year.

{e) The company does not have any subsidiary, joint venture or associate and hence the
reporting requirements under sub-clause (e) of clause (ix) of paragraph 3 of the order
are not applicable.

(f) The company does not have any subsidiary, joint venture or associate and hence the
reporting requirements under sub-clause (f) of clause {ix) of paragraph 3 of the order
are not applicable.

(x} (a) The Company has not raised money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) and hence clause (x}{a) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(b} During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment of shares or
fully or partly or optionally convertible debentures and Hence reporting under clause
{x)(b) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xi} {a) Based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and
fair view of the financial statements and as per information and explanations given to
us, no fraud by the Company or on the Company has been noticed or reported during
the year.

(b) During the year, no report under sub-section 12 of section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013 has been filed by cost auditor/Secretarial audilor vr by us in Form ADT-4 as
prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors} Rules, 2014 with the
Central Government.

(c} As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints
received by the Company during the year.

{xii} in our opinion, Company is not a nidhi company. Therefore, the provisions of clause (xii) of
paragraph 3 of the Order are niot applicable to the Company.

(xit) [n our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all
transactions with related parties are in compliance with section 188 of the Act and their
details have been disclosed in the financial statements etc, as required by the applicable
accounting standards. As per information and explanation given to us, section 177 of the act
is not applicable to the company.

(xiv) () In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given ta us, the
Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its
business.

(b) We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued til} date, for the
period under audit for the purpose of planning our audit procedures.

(xv) According to the information and explanations provided by the management, the Company
has not entered into any non-cash transaction with directors or persons connected with him
as referred to in Section 192 of the Act,

(xvi) (a} To the best of cur knowledge and as explained, the Company is not required to
be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of india Act, 1934.
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(b) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations provided to us
and on the basis of our audit procedures, the Company has not conducted any
Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities during the year as per the
Reserve bank of India Act 1934.

{c} Inour opinion, and according to the information and explanatiens provided to us,
the Company is not a Core Investment Company {CiC) as defined in the regulations
made by the Reserve Bank of India.

{d As represented by the management, the group does not have more than one core
} investment company (CIC} as part of the group as per the definition of group
contained in Core Investment Companies (Reserved Bank] Directions, 2016.

(3ewii) in our opinion, and according to the information and explanations provided to us,
Company has not incurred any cash losses in the current financial year and in the
immediately preceding financial year.

{xwviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Therefore,
provisions of clause {xviii) of Paragraph 3 of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

{xix) According to the information and explanations given ta us and on the hasis of the

financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment
of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our
knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our
attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date
of the audit report that Company is not capable of meeting its iiabilities existing at the
date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the
halance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future
viability of the Company. We further state that ocur reporting is based on the facts up to
the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that
all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get
discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

(xx} According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit
procedures, The Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) contribution under section 135
of the Act is not applicable to the Company. Therefore, the provisions of clause (xx) (&)
& (b} of paragraph 3 of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

For MKPS & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration no. 302014E

Narendra Khandal

Partner

Membership No.: 065025
UDIN : 240365025BKAOFU5971

Place :Mumbai
Date :May 10,2024
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ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDFTOR’S REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF SU
TOLL ROAD PRIVATE LIMITED

(Referred to in paragraph 2 (f} under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ of our
report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause {i) of Sub-section
3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to financial
statement of SU Toll Road Private Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with
our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internai Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India ("ICAI"). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to Company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Act.

Auditor's Responsibility

QOur responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note issued by ICAI and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under
Section 143{10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financiat controls. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls
over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements was established and maintained
and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Qur audit involves performing procedures to ohtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements and their
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial contrels over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to
these financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We helieve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a hasis for
our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting with
reference to these financial statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With Reference To These
Financial Statements

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these financial
statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting with reference to these financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1)
pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company ; and
{3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a materia) effect on the
Financial statements,

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With Reference To
These Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference
to these financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override
of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal {inancial controls over financial reporting with reference
to these financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements may become inadequate because
of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate,

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company
has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial contrels system over financial reporting and
such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31 March 2024,
based on the criteria for internal financial control over financial reporting established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
¥Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For MKPS & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration no. 302014E

Narendra Khandal

Partner

Membership No.: 065025
UDIN: 24065025BKAOFU5971

Place : Mumbai
Date :May10, 2024
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SU Toll Road Private Limited
CIN: UT4939MH2007PTC168145
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024

Rs.Milions
i As at As al
Particulars Note March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
ASSETS
Non-current assels
{a} Concesslion Intangible assets 4 6,335.85 G.6856.04
(b} Itangible assets under development 4 1,697.61 282.62
{c} Current Tax Assets (Net) 7.07 13.87
{d) Deferred 1ax assels {net) 27b 2.60 9.22
Total Non-Current Assets 8,042,863 6,983.75
Current assets
{a) Financial Assels
{i) Cash and cash equivalents Ha 70.77 32.18
(i) Bank balances clher than {i} above 5t 35,69 173,13
(i} Other financial assel 5c 80.02 50.33
(D} Other current assets & 56.95 117.92
Total Current Assots 242.43 37156
Total Assets §,285.36 7,367.31
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
{&) Equity share capital 7 184.12 184.12
{b} Subordinaled debt (in nature of Equily) 8a 150.00 150.00
{c) Olher eqeily 8 (382.49) (240,75}
Total Equity {48.37) 93.37
LIABILITIES
Nan-curront liabilities
{a} Financial Liabilities
Barrowings 9a 5,037.39 5,654.34
(b} Provisivees 12 401.63% 308,35
Total Non-Current Liabilities 542902 5,962.69
Current liabilities
{a) Financial Liabilities
{i) Borrowings gb 1,109.65 489 81
{ii) Trade payables 10
(A} Tolat outstanding due of micro enterprises
& small enterprises - .
{B) Total outstanding dues of creditors olher than
micre enterprises & small enterprises 2.8 20569
{ii) Other financial liabilities " 1,020.51 94.51
{b) Other current liabilities 13 25.22 9.29
{c) Provisions 12a 517.44 511.85
Total Current Liabilities 2,894.71 1,311.25
Total Equity and Liabiities §,285.36 7,367.21
Az per owr attached report of even dale.
For MKPS & Associales Far and on hehalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 302014E
{MNarendra Khandal) Mahesh Gaikwad Prashant Kumar ~
Partner Director Director
Membership Number ; 065025 I3IN: 06664942 DiNno: 10211283
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbat
Date: May 10, 2024 Date: May 10, 2024
Kirti Desai

Company Secretary
Place: Mumbai

[Date: May 10, 2024



5U Toil Road Private Limited
CIN: U74999MH2007PTC 169145
Batance Sheet as at March 34, 2024
Rs.Milions
Particulars As at As at
Note Mazrch 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
ASSETS
Non-current assets
{a) Concesstion Intangible assets 4 6,335.65 G.G88.Gly
{b} ntangible assels under development 4 1,697.61 28262
{c) Current Tax Assels (Net) 7.07 13.87
{d) Deferred lax assets {net} 27h 2,69 922
Total Non-Current Assets 8,042.53 6,983.75
Current assets
{a) Financial Assels
(i) Cash and cash eqguivalenls ha 70,77 32.18
{ii} Bank batances other han (i) above 5ty 35,69 17313
{iii} Olher financial asset 5¢ 80.02 50,33
{b) Other current assels 6 55.85 117.92
Totat Current Assets 242,43 37356
Total Assets 8,285.36 736754~
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
{a) Equily share capital 7 184.12 184.12
(b} Subardinaled debt (in nature of Equity) 8a 150,00 150.00
{c) Qlher equity 8 {382.49) {240.75)
Total Equity {48.37) 93.37
LIABILITIES
Non-currant liahilitics
{a) Financial Liabifities
Dorrowings Ya 5,037.39 5,654.34
{b} Provisions 12b 401.63 308.35
Total Non-Current Lizhitities 5,439.02 £,962,69
Current liabilities
(&} Financial Liabililies
{i) Borrowings b 1,109.69 489.61
{ii) Trade payables 10
(A) Total oulstanding due of micro enterprises
& smail enterprises . R
{B} Total outstanding duns of croditors ofher than s s X
micro enterprises & small enterprises 2283 205.69
(i) Other financial liabilities 11 1,020.5% 94.51
{b) Other current fiabikilies 13 2522 9.29
(¢} Provisions i2a §17.44 511.95
Totai Current Liahifities 2,824 1,311.28
Total Equity and Ligbilities 8,285.36 7.367.31

As per our allached reporl of even dale.

For MKPS & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Mo, 302014E

For and on behaif ofthe Board

{Narendra Khandal) Mahesh Galkwad Prashant Kiumar
Partner Director Direclor
Membership Number : 0650258 DIN: 06664542 DiN o ;10211283

Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai
Dale: May 10, 2024 Dale: May 10, 2024

Kirti Degai
Company Secretary
Place: Mumbai

Date: May 10, 2024




5U Toil Road Private Limited

CiN: U74989MH2007PTC169145

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2024

Rs.Miflions
Particulars Note Year ended Year ended
March 34, 2024 March 31, 2023
Revenue from Operations 14 1,621.40 1,434.96
Other income 15 4.29 13.48
Total Income 1,625.69 1,448 .44
Expenses
Tolf Operation and Maintainence expenses 16 373.83 323.85
Employee benefits expense 17 33.23 30.86
Finance costs 18 861.52 827.64
Amonrtization expense 4 352.38 305.48
Other expenses 19 138.79 79.71
Total expenses 1,759.75 1,567.05
Profit / {loss) before tax - A {134.08) {t19.11}
Tax expense
Deferred tax charge/(credit) 8.62 33.04
Income tax for earlier year - -
Profitf(Loss) for the year - B {140.68) {153.05}

Other Comprehensive Income
-~ Hems that will not be reclassified to profitfioss

Remeasurements of net defined benefit plans ; Gains / (Loss) {1.06} (1.03)
- [ncome tax relating to above - -

Other Comprehensive Incomef{l.oss) - C {t.08} (1.03)

Total Comprehensive income /oss) - (B+C) {141.73} (154.08)

Earnings per equity share of Rs.10 each
Basic & Diluied 34 {7.64) (8.31)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financiai statements

This is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred o in our report of even date.

For MKPS & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 302014E

For and on hehalf of the Board

{Narendra Khandal) Matesh Gaikwad Prashant Kumar
Partner Director Director
Membership Number : 0685025 DIN: 06664942 DIN no : 10211283
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai
Date: May 10, 2024 Date: May 10, 2024

Kirti Debdi

Company Secretary
Place: Mumbai

Date: May 10, 2024




SU Toil Road Private Limited

CIN: U74939MH2007PTC 169145
Statement of Cash flow for the period ended March 31, 2024

Rs Milicns

Particulars

Year ended

March 31, 2024

Year ended
Wiarch 31, 2023

A CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Profiti(loss} hefore tax
Adfustments for-
Amortisalion expenses
Interesl income
Finance Cost
Provision for Graluily / Leave Encashment
Provision for resurfacing expenses

Cash Generated from Operations hefore

working capital changes

Adjustments for:
{increaseddecrease in financial assels
{Increase)fdecrease in other currenl assets
tncreasef{decrease) in trade payables
increasef{decrease) in provisions
Increase/{decrease) in other financial liabilities
Increasef{decrease} in ofher current liabililies

Cash generated from operations
Taxes {paid) net of refunds
Net cash generated trom operating activities - [A}

B CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Purchaselsale proceeds of intangible assels (including {nlangible assets under
developmenl

Redemption of Fixed Deposils wilh Banks
Interes! received
Net cash (used in} ! generated from investing activities « {B)

C CASH FLOW FROM FINANGCING ACTIVITIES:
Repayment of long term borrowings
Interest paid

Net cash used In tinancing activittes - fC]

Net increasel{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents - [A+B+C]

Add: Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivafents at the end ot the year

Components of Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks - in Current accounts
Cash on hand
130 on hand

Total Cash and cash equivalents [ Reter Note 5(a))

{134.06) (119.19)
352,38 305.49
(4.29} (12.09)
BE1.51 827.64
0.9% 0.89
168.31 150.28
1,244.77 1.153.11
(25.69) {3.41)
26.45 37.85
16.13 102,62
(93.29) (144,28}
186,43 21.35
15.93 3.13
121.84 17.26
1,366.62 1,170.37
6.79 {3.55)
1,373.49 1,166.81
{1,414.99) (282.62)
140.17 142.37
492 i2.11
{1,269.90) (12015
- {355.45)
(64.92) (792.14)
{64.92) {1,147 59}
38.59 {108.92)
32.18 141.10
70.77 3218
66.82 27.88
1.34 0.85
2,60 3.35
70.77 3318

The balance in currenl account with banks of Rs. 48.95 million (Rs. 22.92 milfion) lying in Escrow account with bank held as securily

against borrowings.

As per aur altached repor of even dale.

For MKPS & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 302014

{Narendra Khandal)

Partner

Membership Number : 065025
Place : Mumbai

Dale: May 10, 2024

For and on behalf of the Bbard

Mahesh Gaikwad
Director

DIN: DB6640942
Place: Mumbai
Date: May 10, 2024

Kirti Dasdi
Company Secretary
Place: Mumbai
Pate: May 10, 2024

Prashant Kumar
Director
BN no - 10211283




SU Toll Road Private Limited
CIN: U74980MH 2007PTC169 145
Notes to Financial Statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2024

Note 1: Corporate information

SU Tolf Road Private Limited {"the Company”) was incorporated on March 24, 2007, has been awarded
on Build, Operate and Transfer (BOT) basis, strengthening of the existing carriageway from Km. 0.313 to
Km. 136.670, on the Salem — Ulundurpet section of National Highway No. 68 (NH-68) in the State of Tamil
Nadu and widening thereof o 4 lanes and its improvement, operaticn and maintenance through a
concession on Build, Operate and Transfer (BOT} basis under the concession agreement dated July 19,
2007, with National Highways Authority of india. The concession agreement is for a year of 25 years from
Janhuary 15, 2008, being the appointed date stated in clause 1.1 of the said agreement.

The Company is wholly owned subsidiary of Reliance infrastructure Limited. At the end of the Concession
period, the entire facility will be transferred to NHAI.

The financial statements were authorized for issue by the Company's Board of Directors on May 10, 2024
Pursuant to the provisions of section 130 of the Acl the Central Government, income tax authorities and
other statutory regulatory body and section 131 of the Act the board of directors of the Company have
powers to amend / re-opén the financial statements approved by the board / adopted by the members of
the Company.

The Company is a private limiled company incorporated and domiciled in India. The registered office of the
Company is iocated at Reliance Centre, 19, Walchand Hirachand Marg, Ballard Estate, Mumbai 400 0071,

Note 2: Basis of preparation

These Financial Statements comply in all material aspecls with Indian Accounting Standards (ind AS)
notitied under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015] and other relevant provisions of the Act. These Financial Statements have been
prepared in accordance with the requirements of the information and disclosures mandated by Schedute
Il of the Act, applicable Ind AS, other applicable pronouncements and regulations.

These Financial Statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain assets and
ifabilities which have been measured at fair value.

These Financial Statements are presented in ¥ Millions, except where otherwise indicated.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the information and
disclosures mandated by Schedule Iif to the Act, applicable Ind AS, other applicable pronouncements and
reguiations.

Note 3: Summary of Material accounting policies
3.1 Current versus nen-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current
classification.

An asset is treated as current when it is:

*  txpected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal sperating cycle

= Expected to be reatised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

v Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settie a liability for at least
twelve months afler the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.
A liability is current when:
*  ltis expected to be seltled in normal operating cycle
= Itis due to be setiled within iwelve months after the reporting period, or
= There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least fwelve months after
the reporting period
Ali other liabilities are classified as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabifities.




SU ToH Road Private Limited
CING UTA989MH2007P1C169145
Notes to Financial Statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2024

3.2

3.3

The operating cycle is the lime between the acquisition of assets for processing and their reafization in
cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle,

Functionat and presentation currency

lHems inciuded in the financial statements of the company are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the enlity operates (‘the functional currency’). The functional statements

are presented in indian Rupees ¥, which the company’s functional and presentation currency.

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants al the measurement date, The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the {ransaction to sell the assef or transfer the liability takes place either:

* Inthe principal market for the asset or liability, or
= Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advartageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asse! or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to
generate economic henefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
parlicipant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation technigues that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of refevant observable inputs and minimizing
the use of unobservable inputs.

All asseis and liahilities for which fair value is measured or disciosed in the Financia! Statements are
categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - Quoted {unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

Level 3 -Valuation techniques for which the lowesl fevel input that is significant fo the fair value
measurement is uncbservable

For assets and liabifities thai arc rccognised in the Financial Statements on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole)
at the end of each reperting period.

The Company's Managemen! determines the policies and procedures for both recurring and non —
recurring fair value measurement, such as derivative instruments and unquoted financial assets measured
at fair value.

At each reporting date, the Management analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities
which are required to be re-measured or re-assessed as per the Company's accounting policies. For this
analysis, the Management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the
information in the valuation computation to contracts and other relevant documents,

The management also compares the change in the {air value of each asset and liabifity with relevant
external sources to determine whether the change is reasonable.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on
the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value
hierarchy as explained gbove.

This note summarizes accounting poficy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the
relevant notes.
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3.4

35

Disclosures for valuation methods, significant estimates and assumptions of Financial instruments
{(including those carried at amortised cost (note 21) and Quantilalive disclosures of fair value measurement
hierarchy (note 22).

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized up on transfer of control of promised services to customers in an amount that
reflects the consideration we expect to receive in exchange for those services.

Toll revenue

The income fram tolf revenue from operations of the facility is accounted on accrual basis.

Effective from April 1, 2018, the Company adopted Ind AS 115 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”
using the cumulative catch-up transition method, applied to contracts that were not completed as at April 1,
2018. In accordance with the cumulative catch-up transition methed, the comparatives have not been
retrospectively adjusted. There was no impact on adoption of Ind AS 115 in the financial statements.

Others

Interest Income on financial assels measured at amortized cost is recognised using the effective inferest
rate method.

Dividends are recognised in the Statement of profit and loss only when the right to receive payment is
established,

Accounting of intangible assets under service concession arrangement

The Company has Teoll Road Concession rights where it Buiits, Operates and Transfers (BOT)
infrastruclure vsed o provide public service for & specified period of time. These arrangements may
include Infrastructure used in a public-to-private service concession arrangement for its entire useful life.

These arrangements are accounted for based on the nature of the consideration. The intangible asset
model is used to the extent thal the Company receives a right (a license) to charge users of the public
service. The financial asset model is used when the Company has an unconditional coniractual right to
receive cash or another financial asset from or at the direction of the grantor for the construction services.
When the unconditional right to receive cash covers only part of the service, the two modeis are combined
to account separately for each component. if the Company perdorms more than one service (ie.,
censtruction or upgrade services and operation services) under a single coniract or arrangement,
consideration received or receivable is affocated by reference to the relalive fair values of the services
delivered, when the amounts are separately identifiable.

The intangible assels is measured at the fair value of consideration transferred te acquire asset, which is
the fair value of consideration received or receivable for the construction services delivered.

Amortization of concession intangible assets

The intangible asset recognized are amortised over the concession period on the basis ef projected toll
tevetue which reflects the pattern in which the assets economic benefits are consumed. The projected
total toll revenue is based on the independent traffic volume projections; Amortization is revised in case of
any materiat change in the expected pattern of economic benefits. Refer note 24 for description and
significant terms of the concassion agreements.

Financial assets model

The financial assel medel applies when the operator has an unconditional righl to receive cash or another
financial asset from the grantor in remuneration for concession services. In the case of concession
services, the operator has such an unconditional right if the grantor contractually guarantees the payment
of amount specified or determined in the contract or the shortfall, if any, between amounts received from
users of public service and amounts specified or determined in the Contract.

Financial Assets resulting from application of Appendix D of ind AS 115 are recorded in the Balance Sheet
under the heading “Other Financial Assets” and recognized at amorlised cost.

However in case of certain arrangements, the contract may include a payment commitment on the part of
the concession grantor covering only part of investment, with the balance to be recovered from by charging
users of service . In such amrangements the investment amount guaranteed by the concession grantér-is
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recognized under the financial asset model and the residual balance is recognized under the intangible
asset model,

Any asset cartied under concession arrangements is derecognized on disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expecied from its future use or disposal or when the contractual rights to the
financial assel expire.

Maintenance obligations

Contraciual obligations to maintain, replace or restore the infrastructure (principally resurfacing costs and
major repairs and unscheduled maintenance which are required to maintain the Infrastructure asset in
operationat condition except for any enhancement element) are recognized and measured at the best
estimale of the expenditure required to settie the present cbligation at the balance sheet date for which
nexl resurfacing would be required as per the concession arrangement. The provision is discounted to its
prasent value at a pre-lax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the liability.

Taxes
Current Tax

Current income {ax assets and liabilities are measured al the amount expected to be recovered from or
paid to the taxation authorilies. The tax rates and tax faws used to compute the amount are those that are
enacied or substantively enacted at the reperting date in the countries where the Company operates and
generates taxable income. Current income tax relaling to ilems recognized outside the Statement of Profit
and Loss is recognized outside the Statement of Profil and Loss (either in other comprehensive income or
in equity) Current tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. Management pericdically evaluates positions taken in the tax
returns with respect to situations in which applicable 1ax regulations are subject to interpretation and
establishes provisions where appropriaie.

Minimum Alternate Tax {MAT") under the provisions of income-tax Act, 1861 is recognised as current tax
in the stalement of profit and loss. MAT paid in accordance with the tax laws, which gives future economic
benefits in the form of adjustment b lulwe income lax liability, is considered as an asset i there is a
convineing evidence that the Conpany will pay normal lax. Accordingly, MAT is recognized as an asset in
the balance sheet when il is probable that the future economic benefit associated with it will flow to the
Company.

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if, the Company:

ayhas a legally enforceable righl {o set off the recognised amounts; and
b)intends either to setile on a net basis, or to realise the asset and setlle the liability simultaneously.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet approach on temporary differences between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting
date.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are recognized for all taxable temporary differences

Defered lax assels are recognized for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deduclible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax
losses can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting dale and reduced to the exlent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow alt or panl of the deferred
tax asset to be utifized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are
recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabililes are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year
when the asset is realized or the liability is setied, based on tax rates (and tax faws) thal have been

enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.
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3.10

3.1
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Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside the Statement of Profit and Loss is recognized outside
the Statement of Profit and Loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred {ax items
are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabllities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and
the same faxation authority.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly aftributable fo the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as
part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur.
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an enfity incurs in connection with the barrowing of
funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences 1o the exlent regarded as an adjustment to the
horrowing costs,

Leases

Operating lease payments are recognized as an operating expense in the income statement on a straight
ling hasis over the lease ferm.

Contingent liabilities and contingent Assets

A contingent finbifity is a possible obligation that arises from past evenls whose exislence will be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the
Company or a present obligation that is nol recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases
where there is a liability that cannot be recognised because it cannot be measured retiably. The contingent
liability is not recognised in the books of accounts but its existence is disclosed in the Financial
Statements. A Contingent asset is not recognized in financial statements, however, the same are disclosed
where an inflow of economic benefit is probable,

Impairment of non-financial assets

Non-financial assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the
assel’'s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an
assel’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use, For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely
independent of the cash infiows from other assets or groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-
financial assefs that suffered impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of
each reporting period.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obfigation (legal or constructive) as a result of
a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required fo
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the
Company expects some or all of a provisien to be reimbursed the reimbursement is recognized as a
separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is
presented in the Statement of Profit and Loss net of any reimbursement.

i the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate
that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific {o the liability. When discounting is ysed;"the-increase in
the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.

Employee benefits

(i) Short term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expectsd:16.be- settled whally
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within 12 months afler the end of the period in which the employees render the related service are
recognized in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the reporling period and are measured at
the amounts expected lo be paid when the fiabilities are settled. The Habilities are presented as Current
employee benefil obligations in the balance sheet.

{ii) Leave obligations
The Company provides sick leave and privilege leave to ifs employees.

Privilege and sick leave obligation is provided based on actuarial valuation which takes into account
the estimated portion of leave that wili be en-cashed, availed and the porfion that will lapse. The
portion that is expected to be en-cashed is provided for based on the basic salary of the employee
and for the portion that is expected fo be availed, the valuations are based on the employzes’ total
compensation. The liability for earned leave is also classified as current where it is expected lo be
availed! en-cashed during the next 12 months. The remaining portion is classified as non-current. The
amounts of current and non-current liability are based on actuarial estimates.

{iif) Post - employment obligations

The Company operates various post-employment schemes, including
{a) defined benefit plans such as gratuily
(b} defined contribution plans such as provident fund.

Gratuity Obfigations

The liability or asset recognized in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity plans is
the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporling period less the fair
value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by independent actuaries
using the projected unit credit methed.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future
cash outflows by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds
{hat have terms approximating to the ferms of the related obtigation.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate fo the net balance of the defined
benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit expense
in the statement of profit and loss.

Re-measurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are recognized in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive
income. They are included in reteined earnings in the Statement of Changes in Equity and in the
balance sheet.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or
curlailments are recognized immediately in profil or loss as past service cost.

Defined Contribution plans

The Company pays provident fund contributions to publicly administered provident funds as per local
reguiations. The Company has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been
paid. The confributions are accounted for as defined contribution plans and the contributions are
recognized as employee benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognized
as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is avaiiable.

3.13 Cash and cash equivatents

Cash and cash equivalents in {he balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term
deposits with an originat maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.

For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents cansist of cash and short-term
deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of
the Company's cash management. T
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3.14 Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one enlity and a financial liability
or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets
Initial recegnition and measurement

Alt financial assets are recognised initially at fair value, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair
value through Statement of Profit and Loss, net of directly attributable transaction cost to the acquisition of
the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame
established by regulation or convention in the markel place (reguiar way trades) are recognised on the
trade date, i.e., the dale that the Company commits to purchase or sefl the asset.

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in following categories:
» at amortised cost

»  at fair value through profif or loss (FVTPL)

= at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Financial Assets at amortised cost
Financial assets are measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met;

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual
cash flows, and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

This category is the most relevant to the Company. All the Loans and other receivables under financial
assefs (except Investments) are non-derivative financial asscts with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market.

After initial measurement such financial assets are subsequently measured at amorlised cost using the
Effective interest Rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The £iR amortization is
included in finance income in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The losses arising from impairment are
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. This calegory generally applies to {oans and other
receivables.

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Statement of Profit and Loss/Other Comprehensive income

All investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. The Company has investment in mutual
funds which are held for trading, are classified as at FVTPL. The Company makes such election on an
instrument by instrument basis. The classificalion is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an instrument as at FVTOCI, then ail fair value changes on the
instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the Other Comprehensive Income. There is no recycling
of the amounts from Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) to the Statement of Profit and Loss, even on sale
of investment. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equily. Instruments
included within the FVTPL category are measured ai fair value with all changes recognized in the
Statement of Profit and Loss,

De-recognition

A financial asset {or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or pari of the Company’s similar financiat
assets) is primarily derecognized {{.e. removed from the Company's balance sheet) when:

The rights {o receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation
o pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a 'pass-through’
arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the
assel, or (b} the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, but has transferred control of the asset.
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When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to whal extent it has retained the risks and rewards of
awnership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the
asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognize the transierred asset to the
extenl of the Company's continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognizes an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights
and obligations that ihe Company has retained.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets
carried at amoriised cost and FVOCI. The impairment methodology applied depends oh whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk.

The Company has three types of financial assets subject to Ind AS 109's expected credit loss model;
*  Loans receivables measured al amortised cost

* Relentions receivable, grant receivable from NHA}
» lLoans given fo employees

The impairment methedology for each class of financial assets stated above is as follows:

Loans receivables measured at amortised cost: Loans receivables at amorlised cost are generally short
term in nature considered to be low risk, and thus the impairment provision is determined as 12 months
expecied credit losses.

Loans given to employees: For loans given to employees outslanding as on the reporting dates, the has
determined refiably that assessing the probability of default at the initial recognition of each and every loan
or receivable would result in undue cost and effort. As permitted by Ind AS 109, the credit provision will be
determined based on whether credit risk is low only al each reporting date, unlil the foan is derecognized.
Using the impairment methodology the Company has assessed that no loan loss allowance needs to be
recorded in the books of accounts.

Expected credit loss (‘ECL") impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is
recognized as income/ expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss {P&L). This amount is refiecied under
the head 'other expenses’ in the P&L. The balance sheet presentation for various financial instruments is
described below:

Financial assets measured as at amortized cost and other contractual revenue receivables - ECL is
presented as an allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the balance
sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amouni. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the
Company does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross canying amount.

Financial Liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financiai liabilities at fair value through Statement
of Profit and Loss, loans and borrowings, irade payables or other payables,

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value.

The Company's financial liabilities include frade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank
overdrafts and other payables.

Subsequent measurement

Financial liabilities at amortized cost: After initial measurement, such financial liabilities are subseguently
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate (EIR} method. Amortized cost is calculated by
taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the EiR. The EIR amortizalion is included in finance cosls in the Slatement of Profit and Loss.
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3.16

(i

—

Loans and horrowings

This is the calegory most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. However, the Company
has borrowings at floating rates. The impact of restatement of effective interest rate, year on year due to
reset of interest rale, is not material. Gains and losses are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss
when the liabilities are derecognized as welt as through the transaction cost amortization process.

Trade Payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course
of business from suppliers. Accounis payable are classified as current liabilifies if payment is due within
one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are presented as
non-current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognized initiafly at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.

Retention money payable

This is the category most relevant to the Company. Retention moneys are measured at Fair value initially.
Subsequently, they are measured al amortised cost using the EIR {Effective inferest rate) method. Gains
and fosses are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as
through the EIR amortization process.

De-recognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelied or
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing lability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is trealed as the de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability.
The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if
there is @ cusrently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis, to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously,

Segment information

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision maker (CODM). Chief operating decision maker's function is to allocate the resources
of the entity and access the performance of the operating segment of the entity.

The Board assesses the financial performance and position of the Company and makes strategic
decisions. It is identified as being the chief operating decision maker for the company.

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that may have a financial impact on the entity and that are
believed t¢ be reasonable under the circumstances,

The Company makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual resuits. The estimates and assumptions that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets and liabilities are
disclosed below,

Applicability of service concession arrangement accounting to toll roads concessionaire
arrangements

The Company has determined that Appendix D of Ind AS 115 ‘Service concession arrangements! is
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applicable 1o the Company which provides on accounting by the operators for public-to-private service
concession arangements. The Company has entered into concession arrangement with NHAI as per
which the Company would participate in the Design, Bulld, Finance, Operate and Transfer (DBFOT) basis
the toll roads infrastructure. After the end of the concession arrangement, the Company has o fransfer the
infrastructure i.e. toll roads construcled to National Highway Authorilies of india (NHAI),

Accordingly the Company has recognized the intangible assets recognized as per the accounting policy
mentioned in Note no 3.6 ‘Accounting of intangible assets under service concessionaire arrangement’.

{ii) Income taxes

The Company has recognized deferred tax assets relating to carried forward lax losses {0 the extent there
are sufficient taxable temporary differences refating te the same taxation authority against which the
unused tax losses can be utilized, However, the utilization of tax losses also depends on the ability of the
Company to satisfy cerlain tests at the lime the losses are recouped. Management has forecasted future
taxable profits and has therefore recognized deferred tax assets in refation fo tax losses.

{it) Amortization of concession intangible assets

The Intangible asset recognized are amortised over the concession period on the basis of projectad foll
reventie which reflects the pattern in which the assels economic benefits are consumed. The projected
total tolt revenue is based on the independent traffic volume projections; Amortization is revised in case
of any material change in the expected paltern of economic benefits.

{iv) Provision for resurfacing obligation (major maintenance expendifure)

3.7

The Company records the resurfacing obfligation for its present obligation as per the concession
arrangement {o maintain the tol roads at every five years during the concession period. The provision is
included in the Financial Statements at the present value of the expected future paymenis. The
calculations to discount these amounts o their present value are based on the estimated timing of
expenditure occurring on the roads.

The discount rate used 1o value the resurfacing provision at its present value is determined through
reference to the nature of provision and risk associated with the expenditure,

Recent accounting pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") nofifies new standards or amendments 1o the existing standards
under Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. For the year ended
March 31, 2024, MCA has not netified any new standards or amendments to the existing standards
applicable 16 the Company.




51 Toil Road Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2024

Note 4 - Concession Intangible assets Rs.Miltions

Partictlars Toll Coltection rights Intangibie assets
under development

Year ended March 2023
Opening gross carrying amount 8,604.42
Addilions - 28262
Disposals -
Closing gross carrying amount 8,604 42 282.62
Accumulated Amortisation and impairment
Opening accurnulated Amortisation and impairment 1.610.89
Amortisation charge for the year 305.50
Disposals -
Closing accumulated Amortisation and impairment 1,916.39 -
Net carrying amount 6,688.03 282.62
Year ended March 2024
Opening gross carrying amount B.604.42 282.62
Additions - 1,414.89
Disposals -
Closing gross carrying amount 860442 1,697 61
Accumulated Amortisation and impairment
Opening accumuiated Amortisation and impairment 1,816.39
Amortisation charge for the year 352.38
Disposals -
Closing accumulated Amortisation and impairment 2,268.77 -
Net carrying amount 6,335.65 1,697.61

Nofe :

{1) The above Intangible assets is pledged as security with Lenders
{2) Fiat Badlapur in Thane District of Rs 2.15 Millions is included in gross block of inlangible assets
{3) All the title deeds of Immovable property are held in the name of the company
{4) No proceedings has been initiated or pending against the company for holding any benami property under the
Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988. Therefore the disclosure of details of Benami Property held is not

applicable.
{5) intangible Assets under Development ageing

Amount in CWIP for a period of March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Less than 1 year 1,414.98 282.62
1-2 years - -
2-3 years - -
More than 3 years - -
Total Intangible Assets under Development 1,414.98 282,62

(6} Intangible assets under development completion schedule

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

To be completed in

Amount

Less than 1 year 1,192.93 2,391.01
1-2 years - -
2-3 years - -
More than 3 years - -
Total 1,192.93 2,381.01
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Rs.Millions
] As at As at

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Note 5 - Financial Assets - Current
Note § (a) - Cash and Cash equivalents
Balances with banks
- in current accounts 66.83 27 .88
Cash on hand 1.34 .95
DD on hand 2.60 3.35

70,77 32,18
Note 5 {b) - Other bank balances
Deposits with maturity of more than three months but less than 35.69 173.13
twelve months

35.69 173.13

Cash balance not available for use:

company is required to maintain restricted cash which can only be used as a reserve for servicing the debt under
financing arrangements. These restricted cash balances have not been included in the year end cash balances for the

purposes of preparation of Cash Flow Statement.

Cash held on restricted fixed deposits

Fixed Deposits 35.69 173.13
35.69 173.13
Note & {c} - Other financial assets - current
Security deposits 0.43 .27
Grant receivable from NHAI - 3.82
£CL on Grant - {3.92)
interest accrued on fixed deposits - 2.74
Other Receivables 6.81 4,93
Claim recelvable from NHAI 72,78 4240
80.02 50.33
Note 6 - Other Current assets
Advance to vendors 140.52 142,10
ECL of Advance to vendor (106.58) (35.53)
Advance to employees 0.48 0.41
Prepaid Expenses 7.39 6.24
Duties and taxes receivable 14.14 4.70
55,95 117.92




SU Toll Road Private Limited
CIN: UT4999MH2007PTC169445
Statement of Changes in Equity

A.EGUITY SHARE CAPITAL

Rs.Millions

Notes

Baiance at the
baginning of the

Changes in
equity share

Balance at the
ond of the year

year capifal during the
year
For the year ended 31st March, 2023 7 184.12 - 184.12
For ihe year ended 31st tarch, 2024 184.12 - 184,12
8. SUB-ORDINATED DEBT {In nature of equity) Rs.hillions
Balance at the Changes in Balance af the
heginning of the |  eguity share end of the year
Notes . .
year capital during the
year
For the year ended 31sl March, 2023 150.00 - 150.00
For the year ended 31sl March, 2U24 8a 180.00 - 150.00
Hs.Millons
C. OTHER EQUITY
Equilty
Component of Reserves and Surplus
Note c.ompoiu d Securities Retained Delenture Total
financial . . ]
. Premium Earnings Redemption
insloemends
Resorve Reserve
Balance at Aprii 04, 2022 8 8.60 1,938.68 {2,079.45) 47.50 {86.67)
Profili{loss) for the year (153.05) .
Clher comprehensive income for the year (1.03)
Total comprehensive income for the year - (154 08)
Bafance al 31st March 2023 5.60 1,938.68 (2,234.53) 47.50 {240.75)
Balance at April 01, 2023 8 £.60 1,938.68 {2,233.53) 47.50 {240.75)
Profit f{lL.oss) for he year {140.68) {140.68)
Other Comprehensive Incomefl.oss for the year {1.06} {1.08)
Fotal comprehensive income for the year - - {141,73} - {141.73)
For the year ended 37st March, 2024 6.60 1,838.68 (2,375.27) 47.50 {382.,49)

As per our reporl of even dale attached

For MKPS & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Ne. 302014EF

(Narendra Khandal)

Pariner
Membership Number : 065028

Place : Mumbai
Date: May 10, 2024

Far and on hehalf on beard

Mahesh Gaikwad
Director

DIN: 06664942
Place: Mumbai
Date: May 10, 2024

Kirti 2esai
Company Secretlary
Place: Mumbai
Date: May 10, 2024

Prashant Kumar
Director
DiN no ; 10211283
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MNote 7 - Share Capital
[y Mitieons

Partlcula Nos of Shares As al As at
artlculars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Wote 7a - Authorised Equity Share Capital

Ablhe hoginning of lhe year 2,30,00,000 230,00 230400

Addd : Inerease during the year of Rs 4 each - -
A the end of the year 230.00 230.00

Mota 7k - Issued, subscribed and paid-up equily
share capital

Al the beginning of the year 1,84,12,260 184.12 184.12

Add | Increase dunng the year of Rs 10 cach - -
Atthe end of the yoar 184,12 184.12

Note Te - Terms and rights attached 1o oquily shares

‘Tive Company has anly ane class of shares referred 10 as Equity Shares having a Par Value of Rs 106 In the event of Fquidation of the company,
{he holders of equily shares wilf he enlitled 1o receive remaining assels o ihe company, alter distribulion of ail preferential amounts. The dislribution
wilt be in propertion o the number of equily shares hekl by tha shareholders.

Mol ¥d - Reconciliation of nes of Shares

Moz of Shares ol the beginning of the year 1,84,12,260 1,64,12.260
Add : Nos of Shares issued during the year . -
Mos of Shares at the end of the year 1,84,12,260 1,84,12,260

Notr 7o - Shares hebd by the Holding Company
Company or their subsidiariesfassociales

Retance Infrastructure Limited
{immediate and Ultimate Holding Comypany) 1,64,12 260 1,84 12,260

Neto 71 - Detaile of Shareholders bolding more than 5% shares in the company

Reflance infrastructure Limited

Mog of Shares 1.84,12.260 1.84,12.2680
Yo OF DOMGNG 0% 100%

Nee Tg - Details of Shares held by promoters

W Lhango durtng the

Pramoler's Name No. of shares % of total shares yir
Reliance Infraskuciuee Eimiled 1.84,12,260 100% 0%
Note 7h - Number of Shares Pledged, Safekeep and Unpledged by promters

Az al A o
Particulars

March 34, 2024 ]ﬁarch 31, 2023
Pledged 1.49,13,930 1.49,13,930
Safekeep 34,898,329 34,898,329
Unpledged 1 1

1,84,12 260 1,84,12,260
Rs.Mitians
Az at As at

Particulars

Wete Ba - Sub-ordinated debt {in nature of equity}

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Al lhe beginning of the year 150,00 -
Increase f {decrease) during tha year - 150.00
At the end of e yoar 150,00 150.00
Nots 8afl] - Sub-ordinate Debts infused by the Sponsor

Company.

Relisnce Infrastruchure Limited 150.00 150.00

Terms and rights attached to Sub-ordinated debts infused by holding company
i} Subordinated dob is the parl of Sponsors Equity from the promolers of the companys {or (he [roject. which is unseoured and interesl free as per
Common Lozsn Agreement with the lendars;

Hi} Mo repayment/redemptionfinlerest sorvicing alfowed during the moratorium year of Ihe long term project laan,

Maoto 8l - Corparate Guaranies {in nature of equily}
Al ihe baginning of the year 6.60 6.6

ncrease f {decrease) during the year

Al lhe end of ihe yoear
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Rs.Millions

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

Note 8¢ - Retained Earnings

At the beginning of the vear (2,233.53) (2,079.45)
Net Profit/(loss) for the year {140.68) (153.05)
ltems of other comprehensive income recognised
directly in retained earnings

- Remeasuremens of post-employements {1.06} (1.03)

obligations (net of tax)

Af the end of the year (2,375.27) {2,233.53)
Note 8d - Securities Premium Account
At the beginning of the year 1,938.68 1,938.68
Premium on shares issued during the year - -
At the end of the year 1,938.68 1,838.68

Nature and purpose of securities premium

Securities premium reserve is used to record the premium on issue of shares, The reserve is utilised in accordance

with the provisions of the act.

Note Be - Debenture Redemption Reserve

At the beginning of the year 47.50 47.50
Reserve created during the year - -
Reserve utilised during the year - -
At the end of the year 47.50 47.50

Nature and purpose of Debenture Redemption Reserve

As per the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 (amended), company is required to create
debenture redemption reserve out of profits equal to 25% of the amount of debentures issued. Accordingly the
company has appropriated (25%) of the debentures issued which would be utilised for redemption of debentures

during its maturity.
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Rs.Mifions

Parliculars Az at Asatl

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Mole 9 {6} - Borrowings - Non current
Secured
10.75% MNon Convertibie Debentures {Redecmable at Par) 592,54 G308
Term loasns
Term loans from banks 3,659.84 4.121.85
Term loans from financial institutions 785.04 8h6.41
Total 503739 5,654.34

1) Secured Torm L.oan from Banks & Financial Institttions of Rs. 5,415.28 million {Principal undiscounted amount] are secured as under:

Tihe Burrowings are secured by the way of lesms stated in Common |Loan Agreement entered hebweon compaty and Cansarium of lenders which are as under:-

{iy & flirst ranking pari passu morgagercharge over all the Borrower's immovesbie and movable propedies, both gresent and fullre, except the Project Assels,

{ii} & first ranking pari passu charge on all the Borrower’s hank accaunts including, but not fimited o the Escrow Account its Sub-Accounls where afl reventes, Dishursements,
receivables shall be deposited and in all funds from lime 1o ¥me deposited therein and in afl authorised Investmens or othar SECUrties reprosenting afl amounts credijed 1o the
Escrow Account.

{iii} & tirst ranking pae passu charge on alf movable fangible and intangible assels of the Borrower (other than Those specilted in paragraphs (i) above and (iv) below) inchuding

lut nof limited {o its goodwill, underaking and uncalied capitat, hoth present and fulure, axcept the Projec Assets,
(i) 2 first ranking part passu chargs over / assignment of the right, Wtle, interests, benefils, claims and demands of the Bostower in, o and uader any letter of credit, guaraniees
including contracter guarantees and liquidaled damages and performance bond provided by any party lo the Prajes! Documaents,

{v} The applicable interest rate for Rupee term Loan varies (rom §1.95% (o 13,85% 1223

{vi) The Sponsor company lias plodged 9,390,252 equity shares of SU with he respeclive consartim lenders for avaiting various toans,
{vii} Filing of the quarlery retuens or statements of curent assels is not sppficable Lo he COMRANY.

{viii} } Nore of the Banks / [l / other lenders has declared the company as wilfu! defaulter in accordance with guidclines on wilful defaulters issued by RBI. Hence wilfu!
dedailter disclosure is nod applicable

{ix) No charges or satisfaction is pending o be registered with ROC beyound the stattlary poriod

{vii) The carrying amounts of assels pledged as seourily for carrent 2nd non-current borrowings are considered in nale no. 28

2} Secured Loan from 10.75% Non-convertiable Debenture of Rs.743.08 million (Principal undiscounted amount) are sacured as under:

(i) As first pari pasu charge by way of mortagage over all the issuer's Immiovable properties, {angible movable assels, including movable plant & machinery, machinery spares,
taols and acoessaries, furniture, fixture, vehicle and afl oiher movable assets, hoth present and fulire oxcep! the Project Assels:
(i} As first pari pasu charge aver af accounts of Ihe issuers including (e escrow accound and ils sub accounts.

{iii) As fiesl pari pasu charge on altintangible but not dimited (o the goodwill and undenaking both present and future excluding Ihe project assels.

{ivh As (irsL paei pasu charge by assigmment of righl, tilfe, interest, banelits, claims and demands of Ihe issuer in the praject documents and under all gavernment approvats, lo
and under any letter of credit, guarantaes including corlraclor guaranices, insurance contracts and liguidated damages and perlormance bond provided by any parly 1o the
projec{ documents,

(v} The coupan rate for non-convortible debentures is fixed at 10.75% p.a payahle maonthly for entine lenure.

3) Due 1o the outbreak of COVID-19, Ihe Reserve Bank of india has gramed relief (o borowers by way of moralarium of interest and principal instalments (alling due o indian
banks and financial institutions Kk Aug 2020, The company availed the moratorium and nolifiad all consertium lenders,

4) inview af the defaull wrl repayment of the boreowings, the lenders have dassilied the account as Non Pedorming Assel .

{5} Further Ihe Company is in discussion with its lenders far restructuring of their loans and is confident that the restrieciuning plan would be approvedand difference in foan
batance would gel resclved upon restructuring,

6) Maturily Profile of Secured Tarm Loan (Principal undlscounted) are as undar :
Mon Converlible Loan {ratm Finsneial

Parfictdars [ehenture Loan froam Banks Inshitutions

FY 2022.24 6G.80 AG5.76 58.74
FY 2024-25 83.60 462.41 7236
FY 2025-26 Onwards 592,68 3,660.45 792,78

Total 743.08 4.488,63 923.91
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Ga} The company has delayed in Ihe paymont dues to the{ Principal )8anks & financlat lnstilution as al March 31, 2024, The tender wise detads is as hefow :

Mame of Lenders Pringipal As al March 31,
2024
Deria Bank {BOHE) 70,50 278
SHE - (GEM, SBEJ morged) 211.76 278
QBCHNG 8360 275
hoeri ARG {Trust) 126 54 275
491.30

b} The company has delayed in lhe payment dues to the] Intorost JBanks & finaneclat instilution ag at March 31, 2024, The lender wise detalls is as balow :

Name of Lenders interest* As al March 31,
2024

Dena Bank [BOR] 7H.A0 305
S8 - (SEM, SBES merged) 3631.49 05
QOCIPNR 11185 05
Phoeniz ARC {Trust) 85,02 05

739.56 05
* As pet the confimation recaived from eespective fandars, penatl inferest and additional interes! charged by lenders has boen accounted for as on 3181 March, 2024,

Re Millions
As al Asal

Farticufars

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Hote & {b) - Borrowings -Curront

Secured
Current Maturities of lang larm debt (Refor note S{al for Socurily) 1,705.69 489 81
1,109.69 48981
Nole 10 - Trade Payables
Total autstanding due of micro enterprises & small enterprises -
Total putstanding dues of creditors olher than micro enterprises
& small enterprises
Redaled 0.24 024
Cther 221,59 205_45‘3_‘
221.83 205.69
a) Trade Payables ageing schedule
As at 31st March, 2024
Padiculars Qutstanding for betow periods from date of transaction
Less than 1 Year  [1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 Years | Total
1) MSME - - - - -
2) Others 11313 12.97 .90 17,84 204.84
3) Disputed Dues - MSME - - - - -
4} Disputed Dues - Others - - - . -
5} Unhilfed Dues - - - - 16.99
Total 11213 72.97 0.90 76.22 221.83
As at 31st March, 2023
Particulars Outstanding for helow periods from dale of transaction :
Less than 1 Yenr  {1-2 Years Z3¥ears  [Morethan 3 Years | Tolal
T VASHIE . - s e > -
2} Others 15.28 5.44 166.57 2.92 190.21
3) Disputed Dues - MSIME - - - - -
41 Disputed Dues - Cthers - . . T N
&) Unbilled Dues - - - - 15.48
Totai 16.28 5.44 166,57 76.22 205.69

£} Dues to Micre and Smali Entergrisos

Disciosure of payable ta vendors as defined under the "Micro, Smalt and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006" is based on the information available with
the Company regarding the status of registration of such vendors under the said Acl, as per the intimalion received (rom them on requests made by lhe
company. There are ino overdue principal amountsfinlerast payable amounts for delayed payments (o such vendors at the Balance Sheel dale. There are no
delays in paymenl made fo such suppliers during the year of for any earlier years and accordingly therg is no inlerest paid or outstanding inlerest in this regard

i respect of paymenls made during the year or brought for

rward from previous years,
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15 Milhons
. A5 al
Patticulars Warch 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Note 11 - Gthir financiak liabilities - curront
interest Accrued on barewings bul not duo 739,56 -
Employee henefl payable 4,62 7.81
Sawrity Depasis 0.75 .54
Retontion money payable (Refer Foo! Nolo) 275.58 f8 16
Total 1,020.51 94.59
Fool Nota:
Relention money payalles ageing schedule
As at st March, 2024
Particulars Qutstanding for below periods from date of fransaction
Less than 1 Year  [1-2 Years 2-3 Years Moare than 3 Yoars Total
Retenlion Money Fayable 203.74] 56,35 5.30 10186 275.58
As at 31st March, 2023
Particutars [Qutstanding {or below periods from date of transaction
Less than 1 Year  {1-2 Years |2-3 Years |fiore than 3 Yoars | Total
Retention Money Payable 53.26] 8.01}) 6749 | §.00 86.16
Note 12 {a) - Provisions - Curront
Current
Piavision for employee benefts
- Graluity 0.95 o80
- Leave encashinent &412 .06
Cthers .
- Resurfacing expenses 51629 511.0%
517,46 5171.95 i
Node 12 {b) - Provigions - Non - Gurront
Prgwvision for emiployse benefits
- Grabuily 351 223
« Leave encashmaont 0.1¢ 0.07
Olhers
- Resuracing expenses 398.02 305056
401,63 208,35
Moventent it provision dunng the inanciat year is 56l oul a3 befow: H
Resurfacing provisions
At {he baginning of the year 81714 Fraez
Charged / (credited) 1a protit of loss
acfdtional Provision recognised 168,31 150.28
unwinding of decaunt 54.10 3220
Amgunt uliised during the year {12514} {143.56)
Al the end of the year 914.41 8§17.44
Resurfacing provistons - significant estimalos i
As per the service concession amangement with NHAE fhe company is obligated lo carry out resurfacing of tho reads under concession. The company estimalos he fikaly
pravision required towards resurfacing and accrues the costs on a shiaight tine basis over tha pericd at e end of the which resurfacing woult be requirsd, in the Statement of
Frofit and Loxs in accordance with ind AS 37 ' Provisions, Contingenl Liabitities and Contingant Assels' Refer Note no. 3.5 Maintenance obligations. Thess provisions are made
based on the best oslimate of the management which sre raviewad periodically snd necossary effect for the changes, if any, are baken in the financials on prospective basis.
Nole 13 - Other current liabilities ASHY AT
Mareh 34, 2024 March 31, 2022
Dulies and taxos payahle 2522 9.29
A5.42 5928
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Rs. Millions

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2024

Year ended
March 31, 2023

Note 14 - Revenue

Operaling income
- Income from toll collections { Refer Note No.30.2)
Other Operaling income

Note 15 - Other income

Interest income

- On fixed deposits

- Others

Insurance claim received

Excass provision lor expensas writlen back

Note 16 - Toll Operation and Maintainence expenses

Subcontracting expenses
Mainlainence of Roads
[Hectricily expenses

Siliz o) other dineul experses

Note 17 - Employee benefits expenses

Salaries wages and bonus

Conlribution 1o provident funds and other funds
Gratuity

Leave encashiment

Stafl wellare expenses

Note 18 - Finance Costs

Inerest on loan
nwanding of discount on provisions
Olher finanee chargos

Note 19 - Other exponses

Rates & faxes

ECL on advance & Grant
Insurance

Legal and Professional Charges
Auditors Remuneration

- Audit Fees

Travelling and Conveyance
Olher miscellancaus cxpenses

1,621.32 1,434.42
0.08 0.54
1,621.40 1,434,986
2.32 12.08
1.97 0.47

- 0.92
4.29 13.48
77.37 76.26
28717 234.47
5.00 4.42
0.29 370
373.83 323.85
30.16 28.05
1.48 1.38
.72 .51
018 0.38
0.68 0.54
33.23 30.88
80448 783.16
54.10 3220
.94 12.28
§61.52 B27.64
0.03 0.83
71.05 39.44
17.98 17.91
47.28 19.28
0.29 0.24
0.98 a.7g
1.22 21
$38.79 79.71
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Notes to Financial Statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2024

Note 20 - Fair value measurements
Financial Instruments by category
Signficance of financial instruments

Rs.Miliions

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

Financial assets

Af amortised Cost
Security Deposits
Inferest accrued on fixed deposits
Other Receivables
Cash and Cash equivalent
Other bank balances
Claim receivable from NHAI
Total financial assets

Financial liahilities

At amortised Cost
Floating Rate Borrowings
Debentures
Trade Payables
Retenticn money payable
Security Deposits
interest accrued but not due
Employee Benefits Payablefother payahle

Total financial labilities

0.43 0.27
- 2.74
6.81 493
70.76 3218
35.69 17313
72.78 42.40
186,47 255.63
5,466.85 5.418.07
680.24 726 08
221.83 205.69
275.58 86.16
0.75 0.54
739.56 -
4,62 7.81
7,389.43 6,444.35
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Notes to Financial Statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2024

Note 21 - Fair value Hierarchy

{a) Fair value Hierarchy - Assets and liakilities measured at amortised cost for which fair values are disclosed

Rs.Millions
. Ag at As at
P
articulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Financial assets
Level 3
Grant receivable from NHAI - .
Total financial assets - -
Financial liabilities
Level 3
Floating Rale Borrowings 5466.85 5418.06
Debentures 680,24 726.08
Retention money payable 275.58 86 16
Total financial liabilities 8422 67 6230.30

Recognised fair value measurements
Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices.

Level 2! The fair value of financial instrtuments that are not traded in an active market (for example, over-the-counter
derivatives) is determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable market data and rely as litlle
as possible on entity-specific estimates. if all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the
instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on cbservable market data, the instrument is included in level
3. This is the case for borrowings, debentures, Retention money payable and hedging derivative included in level 3

Valuation technigue used to determineg fair value

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include:

« the use of quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments

+ the fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts and principal swap is determined using forward exchange rates at the
balance sheet date

+ the fair value of the remaining financial instruments is determined using discounted cash flow analysis.
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Neotes to Financial Statements as of and far the year ended March 31, 2024

(b} Fair vatue of financial assets and liabilities measured af amorised cost

Rs.Millions

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2024

Az al
March 31, 2023

Financial assets

Carrying value of financial assets at amortised cost
Grant receivable from NHAI

Fotal Financial assets at amortised cost

Fair value of financial assets carried at amortised cost
Grant receivable from NHAI

Total Fair vatue of tinancial assets at amortised cost
Financial liabilities
Carrying value of financial Habifities at amortised cost
Floating rate borrowigns

Debentures
Retention money

Fair vatue of financial liabilities carried at amortised cost

Fioating rate borrowigns
Debeniures
Retention money

5,466 .85 5,418.08
680.24 726.08
276.58 86.17

6,422.67 6,230.31

5,466.85 5,418.06
680.24 726.08
275,58 86.17

6,422 67 6,230.31

The carrying value amounts of fixed deposits, interest accrued on depoists, retention money receivable, insurance claim

receivable, cash and cash equivalents, trade payables, interest accrued, employee benefits payable and creditors for

capital expenditure approximate their fair value due o their short term nature.

For financial assets and tiabilities that are measured at fair value, the carrying amounts are equal to the fair values.




SU Toll Road Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2024

Note 22 — Financial risk management
The company's activilies exposes it to market risk, liquidity risk and credit risk.
This note explains the source of risk which the entity is exposed to and how the entity is manage the rigk -

Rigk Exposure arising  Measurement Management
from
Credit risk Cash and cash Aging analysis Diversification of
equivalents, trade  Credit ratings bank deposits,
receivables, credit limits and
financial assets letiers of credit

measured at
amortised cost.

Market risk — foreign exchange Recognized Cash flow Actively Managed
financial assels forecasting
and liabilities not Sensitivily analysis

denominated in
Indian rupee (INR})

Markel risk — interest raie Long-term Sensilivily analysis  Actively Managed
borrowings at
variable
Rates
Liquidity risk Borrowings and Rolling cash flow Avaitability of
other liabilities forecasis committed cradit
lines and

borrowing facilities

The company's risk management is carried out by a project finance team and central freasury team under policies approved by board
of directors. Company identifies, evaluates and hedges financial risk in close co-operatlion with the group’s operating units. The

Managemant of the company provides wrillen principles for overall risk management, as well as policies covering specific areas, such
as interest rafe risk and credit risk, uze of derivative financial instrument and non-derivative financial instrument, and investments of
excess liquidity.

Commuodity risk:
The company reqguires for implementation (construction, operation and maintenance)} of the projects, such as cement, bitumen, steel
and other construction materials. For which, the company entered inio fixed price contract with the EPC contractor and Q&M

Cunlractor 3o us (o manage ow exposute o price incredses o daw materials, Hence, the sensitivity analysis is not required.
Market risk — interest rate risk

The Bank loans follows floating rates with resets defined under agreements. While interest rate fluctuations carry a risk on financials,
the company earn toll income which is tinked to WP thus providing a natural hedge to the interest rafe risk.

a} Interest rate risk exposure Rs.Millions
. As at As at
Particulars March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Variable Rate Borrowings 5,466 .85 5.418.07
Fixed Rate Borrowings 680.24 726.08
Total 6,147.09 §,144.15

) Sensitivity analysis

Profit or foss is sensitive to higherlower interest expense from borrowings as a result of changes in interest rates.

) As at As at
Impact on profitfloss after tax March 34, 2024 March 31, 2023

Interest rates {increase} by 100 basis points (46.08) (45.67)
Interest rates decrease by 100 basis points 48.08 45.67
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Note 23 - Capital risk management
The company's objectives when managing capital are to

safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern, so that they can continue to provide returns for
. sharehoiders and benefils for other stakeholders, and
. Maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

For the purpose of the company's capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, share premium,
sub-debts and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the parent. The primary objective of
the company capital management is to maximize the shareholder value.

The company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions
and the requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the company may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue interest free sub-ordinate
debt. The company monitors capital using a gearing ratioc, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt.
The company policy is to keep optimum gearing ratio. The company includes within net debt, interest bearing
loans and borrowings, trade payables, less cash and cash equivalents.

In order to achieve this overall objective, the company capital management, amongst other things, aims to
ensure that it meets financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital
structure requirements. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital for
year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023,

Consistent with others in the industry, the group monitors capital on the basis of the following gearing ratio:

Net debt including total borrowings (netl of cash and cash equivalenis)
divided by
Total ‘equity’ (as shown in the balance sheet).

Rs . Millions
. As al As at
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Net debt {a} 6,076.32 6,111.97
Equity (b} (48.37) 93.37
Net debt to equity ratio {a) / {b) (125.63) 65.46
Rs. Millions
. As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Net debt {a} 6,076.32 6,111.97
Equity (b) (48.37) 93.37
Nebi debt plus Equity (¢ = atb) 6,027.95 6,206.34
1.01 0.98

Gearing ratio{a) /¢
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Liquidity risk - Table

The table below analyses the company's non-derivative financial liabilities and net-settled
derivative financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at
the halance sheet date to the contractual matuwrity date. Derivative financial liabilities are
included in the analysis if their contractual maturities are essential for an understanding of the
timing of the cash flows. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted

cash flows.

As at March 31, 2024 Less than1  More than 1 Total
year year

Non-derivatives

Borrowings 488.80 5665.82 6,155.62

interest on Borrowings 695.23 2,301.18 2,996.42

Trade and other payables 221.83 - 221.83

Other financial fiabilities 301.58 - 301.58

Total non-derivatives 1,708.44 7,967.01 9,675.45

As at March 31, 2023 Less thani1 More than 1 Total
year year

Non-derivatives

Borrowings 489 80 5,668.56 5,158.36

Interest on Borrowings £695.23 2,301.19 2,996.42

Trade and other payables 205.69 - 205.69

Other financial liabilities 115.15 - 115,15

Total non-derivatives 1,505.87 7,969.75 9,47b.62
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Note 24- Concession arrangemonts - Main features

Rs Milfions

Name of entity

Description of the
arrangement

Intangiixle Assots

Signilicant torms of the arrangement

3ross book value

Nt hoak value

Financial Asset

SU Toll Road  [Financing, design, bulding and  [Perind of concession: 2008 - 2023 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2024 Margh 34, 2024
Private Limiled  |operation of 136 kilometre long
six ane tol 16ad between Salem | o o e ation : Tl 8,604.42 6.335,65 .

and LHunderpit on Nationst

Highway G

Invesiment grant from concession grantor
Yes

Infrastructure return al the end of concession
period | Yes

fnvastment and renewal obligations | Ni
Re-pricing dales : Yearly

Basis upon which re-pricing ar re-negotiation
iz determined : inflalion

Premium payable to grantor @ Nif

March 31, 2023
8,604 .42

March 31, 2023
6 68803

March 31, 2023
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Notes to Financial Statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2024

Note 25 -Related Party Schedule

As per ind AS-24 " Related Party Disclosure” the Company's refated parties and trasnsactions with them in the ordinary

course of business are disclosed helow :

(A) Parties where control exists
Holding Company - Reliance Infrastructure Limited

(i) Key Management Personnel
Mahesh Gaikwad - Director
Prashant Kumar - Director - Appointed w.e.f 23rd June 2023
Sandeep Joshi - Director - Resigned w.e.f 23rd June 2023
Kirti Vijaysingh Desai - Company Secretary
Wr. Sathish Subramaniyan - Manager

Details of transactions and closing balance :

Rs.hillions

Particulars

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Transactions during the year :-

Balances at the year end :-

Trade payable

Reliance Infrastructure itd

Equity share capital (excluding premium)
Reliance infrastructure itd

Sub-debts {in nature of equity)

Reliance Infrastructure itd

Bank Guarantee issued an behalf of the company
Reliance Infrastructure itd

0.24

184.12

150.00

352.14

(B) Key Management Personnel {(KMP} and details of transactions with KMP :
During the year no payment was made to Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)

0.24

184.12

150.00

352.14
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Note 26-Gratuily and other post-employment bencfit plans s Milkons

a) Defined contribution plan
The foliowing amouni Tecognized as an expense in Stalemen! of profit and toss on account of pravident fund and other funds. There arg ng olbher

obligations other than the contribution payable to {he respeclive authorilies.

Particul As at As at
ardculars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Contribulion ko provident fund and other funds 1.48 1.38
Total 1.48 1.38

a) Defined benefit plan

The company has a defined benefit plan {Gratuity) for its employees. The gratuily plan is governed by the Payment of Gratuily Act, 1972, Under the Acl,
employee who has compleled five years of service is entilled 1o specific henefil, The level of benefits provided depends on lhe member's length of
sefvice and satary at retirement age. Every employee who has compleled five years or more of service gels a gratuity on deparlure at 15 days salary
{fast drawn salary) for each completed year of service as per the provision of the Payment of Graluity Act, 1972 with lotal ceiling on gratuity of
Rs.1,000,000/-, The said graluity plan is funded.

The following tables summaries the The amounts recognised in the balance sheet and the movements in (he net defined benefit obligation over the year
are as follows:

i As at As at
Particutars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Present Value of Benefit Obligation at the beginning of the year 5.92 4,26
Inferest cost on benehl obligation 043 0.24
Currenl service cost ¢.50 0.42
Benefit Paid directly by Employer {036} -
Actuariat [oss f {gain} arising from change in Demographic assumiplions 0.05 0.07
Actuariat toss ¢ (gain) arising from change in financial assumptions 0,12 (0.34)
Acluarig! loss [ {gain) ansing on account of expérience changes 0.88 1.26
Present Vaiue of Benetit Obigation at the end of tha year 7.54 £.92
Change in the fair value of plan Asset
Fair value of ptan Asset at the beginning of the year 2.88 2.78
Inlerest cosV (income) on plan assel 0.22 .18
Return on plan asset, excluding amount included amount included in inlerest expenses/{income) {0.0%) (0.03)
3.09 2.88
Amgunt Recognised in the balance Sheet
Present Value of Benefil Obligation at \he end of the year {7.54} (5.92)
Fair value of plan Assels at the end of the Period 3.09 288
Net (Liability)fAsset Recognized in the balance sheet {4.45) {3.03}
Net Asset is bifurgated as foltowing:
Current (0.80) {0.80)
Non-Current (3.65) {2.23)
(4.45) {1.03)
Exponses Recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss for Current Period
Current Service Cost 0.50 042
Net Inleres! Cost 0,22 0.09
gxpenses Recognlzed 0,72 0.51
Expenses Recognized in the Other Comprehensive Income {OCI) for Current Period
Actuarial (Gains}Losses arising on Obifgation for the period 1.05 0.9%
Relurn on plan assets, excluding amounl included in inlerest expensef{income) 0.0% 0,02

Net {income] /Expense For the Period Recogrized in OCI 1.08 1.03
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Particulars

As al
March 34, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

Biscoun rate 7.18% 7.31%
Expectled rate of return on plan assets (p.a) 7.98% 7.31%
Satary escalation rate (p.a) 8.40% 85.00%
Indian Assured  indian Assured Lives
Maortakity pre-retirement Lives Mortality Martalily
{2012-14) {2012-54}

A guanlitative analysis for significant assumplion is as shown below:

As at As at

Parlicutars

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Assumptions -Riscount rale

Sensilivily Level

Impact on defined benefit obligation -in $ increase
Impact on defined benelit obligation -in % decrease
Assumptions -Future safary increases
Sensitivity Level

impact on defined benefit oblivation -in % increase
impact on defined benefil obligation -in % decrease

100 bp
-2,92%
3.16%

100 bp
3.09%
-2.91%

160 bp
-3.40%
3.35%

100 bp
3.26%
3. 11%

The lable below shows the expecled cash flow profile of the benefits to be paid fo the current membership of the plan based on past service of the

employees as at the valuation date;

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

Within the next 12 months {next antwai reporting period)
Between 2 and & years

Betwaen 6 and 10 years

For and Beyond 11 years

Total expected payments

The average duralion of the defined benelil plan obligation al the end of the reporling period

Plan Assets Composition

2.44
3.26
3.04
108
9.80

5 years

1.08
3.53
2.45
0.76
7.82

5 years

Farticuiars

As at
March 31, 2024

As at
Marcl: 31, 2023

Non Queoted
insurer Managed Funds

A reconcilfation of the assel ceiling during he inter-valuation period is given betow:

Cipening value of asset celling

Add - interest on opening balance on asset ceing
Remeasurement dug 1o :

Changes in surplus/deficiet

closing value of asset ceiling

3.09

2.86

3.09

2,88
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Note 27 Income tax expense

Rs Millions

(a} Income tax expense

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Current lax
Current tax on profits for the year
Adjustments for current tax of prior pericds

Total current tax expense

Deferred fax

Decreasef(increase) in deferred tax assets (26.22) 11.94
(Decrease)fincrease in deferred tax liabilities 19.61 (45.87)
Total deferred tax expense/{benefit) (6.62) (33.94)
Less: Liability/Income Payable/Recoverable from future tariff

Net deferred tax expensef(benefit) - -
Income tax expense (6.62) {33.94)
Income tax expense is attributable to:

Profit from continuing operations {6.62) (33.94)

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by
India's tax rate:

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2023

Frofit from operations before income fax expense (134.06}) {119.11)
Tax at the Indian tax rate of 26 % {34.86) (30.97)
Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible (faxable) in calculaling {axable
incomao:
Income not considered for Tax purpose (6.62) {33.94)
Effect of change in Tax Rate 34.66 30,97
Income tax expense charged to statement of Profit and Loss (6.62) (33.94)
{b) Deferred tax balances
The halance comprises temporary differences attributable o ;

As at As at

Particulars

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Deffered tax liability on account of :

Intangible assets
tmpact of effective interest rate on borrowings
Total Deffered tax Liabilities

Deffered tax asset on account of :
Unabsorbed losses

Provision for resurfacing Expenses (MMR)
Retirement benefit chligation

Total Deffered tax Assets

Deffered Tax Asset (Nef)

599.67 572.68
2.22 2.99
601.89 575.67
365.52 371.60
2371.75 212.46
1.22 0.82
604.49 584.88
2.60 9,22
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Deferred Tax Template

¢} Movement in deferred tax liability { asset

Rs.Millions
Intangible assets -
Unused tax losses premium QOther Total
Particulars deferement
As at April 01, 2023 IV160 (572.68) 210.30 9.22
Charged/{credited) during the quarter
to profit or loss {6.08) {26.99) 26.45 (6.62)
10 other comprehensive income
At March 31, 2024 365.52 {699,67) 236.74 2,60
Rs.Millions
Intangihle assets -
Unused tax losses premium Other Total
Particulars deferement
As at Apri! 01, 2022 427.90 (583.76) 199.01 43.15
Charged/(credited) during the quarter
to profit or loss (56.30) 11.08 11.29 £33.93)
to other comprehensive income
At March 31, 2023 371.60 (572.68) 210.30 9.22
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Note 28 : Assets pledged as security
The carrying amounts of assels pledged as security for current and nor-current borrowings are:

Rs.Miflions
Note | March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023

Current
Financial assets
First charge
Cash and cash equivalents 5a 70.77 32.18
Bank balances other than above hb 35.69 173.43
Other Financial Assets 5¢ 80.02 50.33

Non-financial assets

First charge
Other Current Assets 7 55.95 117.82
Total current assets pledged as security 242.44 373.56

Non-current
First charge

intangible Asset 4 6,335.68 6,688.04

Other non current assets 6 - -
Total non-current assets pledged as security 6,335.65 6,688.04
Total assets pledged as security 8,578.08 7,061.5¢

Note 29 : Disclosure pursuant to para 44 A to 44 E of Ind AS 7 -Cash flow Statements

Year Ended Year Ended

Particulars March 31,2024 March 31,2023
Long term Borrowings
Opening Balance 6,144.14 6,496.30
Availed during the year - -
Changes in Fair Value

- impact of Effective Rate of Interest 294 3.28
Less : Repayment During the year - 355.45
Closing Balance 6,147.08 6,144.14
Interest Expenses
Opening Balance . -
Interest Charge as per Statement Profit & Loss 861.52 827.64
Changes in Fair Value
- Impact of Effective Rate of interest (2.94) {3.29}
- Unwinding of Discount on provisions {54.10) (32,20}
- Unwinding of Discount on retention money - -
- Other
Interest paid to Lenders (64,92} (792.14)
Closing Balance 739.56 0.00
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Note 30 - Contingent liabilities

Rs Millions
As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
T Claims against the company not acknowledged as debls and under liigation
inconte Tax Claim 0.18 0.18

2.FasTag Penalty . -The company has been collecting penaity from the users for using FasTag lanes without valid FasTAG, the
same has been considered as part of income of the company since the company is of the view that the same s not payable to

NHA! notwithstanding the demands from NHAL The aggregate amount of penalty collected and appropriated under Income for
March 2024 is Rs.23.05 Mififon { For March 2023 is Re.19.91 Million) and ti March 2024 is Rs.72.26 Million

3.Independent Engineers/ NHAI have issued various communication to the company purportedly lowards default in meeting the
maintenance obligation of the company and consequential penalty on account of the same. The company has contestad the
same and hence no effect of the same is considered necessary in the financial statements

4.There are numerous interpretative isues relating to the Supreme Court (SC) judgement dated February 28th, 2016 on
Prewvident Fund (PFY on the inclusion of allowances for the purpose of PR contribution as well as its applicability of effective date.
The Company has evaluating and there is no material impact on ils financial stalement. The Company, i respect of the above
mentioned Contingent Liabilities has assessed that it is only possibie but nol probable that outflow of economic resources will be
required.

5.The indirect tax authorities during an investigation in Financial Year 2016 stated that the Company was not eligible to avail
CENVAT credit as there was no oulput service liable to tax. The department issued an order in April 2016 demanding interest on
the CENVAT credil availed fur pariod Oclober 2010 to March 2012 and penally an account of wilful suppression of facts. The
Company has appealed against such order before the Tax Appellate Tribunal. The tribunal has set aside the said adjudication
order against which department has now gone in appeal before the Hon'ble High Court of Mumbai,

6.The Company has received communication from NHAI for Intention of Termination (10T} alleging breaches, which, iner alia,
include purported non fulliiment of maintenance obiigation by the company as per the requirement of Concession of Agreement.
The Company has contested the same and hence do not anticipale any such action by NHAI since it is in the process of {ulfilling
the required obligation(s), wherever required.

Note 31 - Capital Commitments and other commitments

Rs.Aillions
] Year ended Year ended
Particutars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Estimated value of capital contract remaining
lo be executed for construction of toll road 1,182.93 2.391.01
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Note 32 - Arbitration Claims by the company

The Company had invoked arbitration against NHAI on account of claims lowards prolongation cosls, damages for delay, etc. The
award has been proenounced on 08th October, 2021 and the Tribunal rejected all the claims submitted by the Company. In case of
counter-claims, the particulars of the Award are as under:

1. For Refund of Excess Grant paid to the Claimant (Rs. 182.94 Cr) : Refund of Rs. 182.94 Cr was rejected. However, awarded to
recover interest @ 8% p.a. on the sum of Rs. 22.97 Cr with effect from 27th Oct 2021 1ill the said amound is fully adjusted againsl
the O&M grant payable to the Concessionaire, It is made clear that the inlerest shalt be caiculated on reducing balance of the
excess amount aller quarterly adjustmenis il the entire principal is fully adjusted, that s, it is Rs. 1.03 Cr.

2. awarded principal amount of Rs. 57.03 Cr against the counter claim on O&M Obligations and interest @ 9 % p.a. pendente lite
and future till the payment.

3. Bireclion to lhe Claimant to complete the worlc under its contractual obligations as per the Concession Agreement: The
claimant being under a contractual obligation to undertake periodic repair works/BC Overfay of 40 mm thickness once in every §
years is direcled to complete the said work expeditiously and in keeping with the best industry practices having regard to the
recommendations made by the IC as to the timeframe for completion of the said work.

The Company has filed Petition under section 34 of Arbitration and Conciliation Act, 1896 before the Delhi High Court to
challenge the Award. Matter is pending before the Hon'ble High Court of Delhi. Next hearing date is 06.08.2024.

In the mean time, the company submitted its application under Vivad Se Vishwas-l Scheme to NHAI for settlement of dispute.
NHA? vide its lelier dated 28.03.2024 communicated that the updated settlement amount after considering the cutoff dale of
interest as on the date of acknowledgement is Rs. 56.10 Cr.

Further NHAI had requested to furnish the documents indicaling permission of the Court to withdraw such cases which are in
progress against NHAI relating to the present matter, if any, before signing the Seitiement Agreement. The matlier is being
pursued with NHAI for signing the Settlement Agreement.

Note 33

The current liabilities of the the company have exceeded its current assets. The company is underlaking a number of steps which
will result in an improvement in cash flows and enable lhe company to meet its financial obligations. There has also been
improvement in the revenues of the company and such revenues have been sufficient to recover the operating costs and the
EBITA (Earnings before interest, Tax & Amortisation) has been positive since The commencement of the operations. Additionally,
it enjoys fong concession period extending uplo FY 2033 and the cumrent cash flow issues have oceurred due to mismatch in the
repayment schedule vis a vis the concession period.

MNote 34 - Earning per share: Hs Millions
. Year ended Year ended

Particutars March 31, 2024 || Warch 31, 2023
Profit/ Loss attributable to equity shareholders (Rs Millions} (A} {140.68) {153.05)
Welghted average number of equily shates for basic and diluled garmings pe 1,84,12,280 1,84,12 260
share (B)

Earnings / {L.oss) per share {Basic and diluted} (Rupees) (A/B) {7.64) {8.31)
Nominat value of equity shares {Rupeaes) 10.00 10.00

Note 35- Segment Reporting

The Company is engaged in "Road Infrastructure Projects” which in the context of Ind AS 108 "Operating Segment” is considered
as the only segment. The Company's activities are restricted within india and hence, no separate geographical segment disclosure
is considered necassary.

Note 36- Foreign Currency Exposure

The company does not have any exposure in the foreign currency

Note 37- Events after reporting pericd

There are no subseguent event afler the reporting yaar which required adjustments to the Financial Statements.
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Note 38 - Ratios

Particulars Mar-24 Mar-23 % variance  {Reason for variance
1} Current ratio {a/h) 0.14 045 {70.14) Ratio reduced mainly due fo
increase in current malurily  of
secured {oan as compare lo last
Current Assels (a) 242.43 373 56 year and reduclion in cash batances.
Current Liability {b) 1,785.02 821 44
2} Rebt Equity ratio (cid) (127.08) 65.80 {293.12) Debt Eguity ralic has reduced
Debt () 854700 5144.15 mainly due to losses duing the
o o year, resulling inlo reduction in
Equily {d) {48.37) 93.37 equity.
3} Debt Service Coverage ratio { eff) 16.63 .88 178245 Ratio reduced mainly due to
CBITBAG) 7076.84 07405 increase in repayment of secured
AR T ioan during the year,
inlerest on Term Loan G4.92 792.14
Principat Repayment - 355.45
Tolal Interest & Principal Repayment (f) 64.92 1,147.59
4} Return on Equity ratio (g/h) (6.258} {0.50) 596.16 Ratio reduced mainly due to losses
during the year, resulling mnto
Profn after Tax (@) (14068) {153.05) reduction in shareholder's eguily.
AverageShareholder's Equity (1) 22.50 170.41
5} Trade Payahle Turnaver ratio (iff) 2.40 2.61 {B.26) InGrease in lunover mainly due to
higher loll revenue in compare to
Net Credil Purchases () 512.62 403,56 last year and reduclion in trade
payable, resulling in improvement in
Average Trade Payableff) 213.76 154.39 ratio.
6] Net Capital Turnover ratio {kfn} {1.05) {3.20) {67.19) Ratio reduced mainly due 1o
Mot Saios (1) TE51.40 143466 increase I current matwrity  of
o e secured loan as compare to last
Current Assets (i) 24243 373.56 year and reduction in cash balances.
Current Liabililies (m) 1,785.02 82144
Working Capilal () {l-m} {1,542.58) {447.87}
7) Net Profit ratio {0.09) (0.1} {18.65) Ratio improved mainly due to
Brofit after Tax (m) T140.58) (153.05) merease in Toll Revenue as
comapre to last year resulling in
Net Salas (n) 1,621.40 1,434.46 reduction in Profit afler Tax.
8) Return on Capital Employed (ofr) 0.12 0,11 5.01 Ratio improved due to increase in
toll revenue, resulting increase in
EBITA (0) 75746 708.53 aperalion profit during the year as
compare to last year.
Net Worlh {p} {48.37) 93.37
Tolal Debt (q} 6,147.09 6,144.15
Total Capital Employed (1) {p+q} 6,098.72 G,237.50
9) Return on tnvestmant MNA, NA
1¢} fnveatory Turnover Ratio NA NA
1t} Trade Receivable Turnover Ratio NA NA
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Note 39

Other Statutory tnformation

{i) The company has no transactions with struck off campanies under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2043 of seclion 560 of Companies
Acl, 195G,

{ity The Company do not have any Capilal-work-in progress or intangible assels under development, whose complelion is overdue or has
exceeded its cost compaied to ils ofiginal pian.

{iiy The Company have not advanced or joaned ar invested funds fo any olher personds} or entity(ies), inctuding foreign entities
{Intermediaries} with the understanding thal the Intermediary shali;

{a) Direclly or indireclly fend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company
{Uttimale Beneliciaries) or

(b) Provide any guarantee, security or he {ike o of on behall of the Ullimale Beneliciaries.

{ivi The Company have not teceived any lIund from any person(s} or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Parly) wilh Ihe
understanding {whether recorded in wriling or otherwise) thal the Company shalk:

{a} Direclly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons ar entilies identified in any manner whalsoever by or on behaif of the Funding Parly
(Ultimate Beneficlaries) or
(b} Provide any guaraniee, securily or the like on behall of the Ullimate Beneliciaries.

Note 40

The Company have not any such fransaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as
income during the year in the 1ax assessments under the Income-tax Act, 1961,

Note 41 Detalls of Crypte cursency or virtual currency
Company has not traded or invesied in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year
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